

Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 Release Notes

Table of Contents

About Release Notes	6
Packages	7
System Requirements and Supported Platforms	9
New Features	10
Enhancements	11
Data Model Changes	12
Resolved Issues	
Known Issues	
Apttus Copyright Disclaimer	15
Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 5 Release Notes	17
About Release Notes	
Packages	18
System Requirements and Supported Platforms	19
New Features	20
TurboPricing Integration with Digital Commerce	20
Introducing CPQ REST API Version 2	20
Enhancements	21
Data Model Changes	21
Resolved Issues	21
Known Issues	21
Apttus Copyright Disclaimer	21
Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.01.04 Release Notes	23
About Release Notes	23
Packages	24
System Requirements and Supported Platforms	25
New Features	26
Enhancements	26
Enhancement to the SDK to Allow Making Pricing Changes	26
Export line-item-table-row Component to Extend for Customization	27
Data Model Changes	27
Resolved Issues	27
Known Issues	27

Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.01.15 Release Notes	28
About Release Notes	28
Packages	29
System Requirements and Supported Platforms	30
New Features	30
Enhancements	31
Data Model Changes	31
Resolved Issues	31
Known Issues	32
Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.01.29 Release Notes	
About Release Notes	33
Packages	34
System Requirements and Supported Platforms	35
New Features	36
Enhancements	36
Data Model Changes	36
Resolved Issues	36
Known Issues	36
Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.02.26 Release Notes	38
About Release Notes	
Packages	
System Requirements and Supported Platforms	
New Features	
Enhancements	
Data Model Changes	41
Resolved Issues	41
Known Issues	41
Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.03.26 Release Notes	42
About Release Notes	42
Packages	43
System Requirements and Supported Platforms	44
New Features	
New Convert Currency Pipe	
Addition of a New Input Property to Chart Components	45
Introducing CPQ REST API Version 3	46
Enhancements	46
Data Model Changes	46

Resolved Issues	46
Known Issues	47
Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.04.23 Release Notes	48
About Release Notes	48
Packages	49
System Requirements and Supported Platforms	50
New Features	51
SDK Integration with Digital Commerce for Turbo Data API's	51
Enhancements	51
Data Model Changes	51
Resolved Issues	51
Known Issues	52
Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.05.17 Release Notes	53
About Release Notes	53
Packages	54
System Requirements and Supported Platforms	55
New Features	56
SDK Integration with TurboPricing	56
Product Search and Catalog View Enhancement to Turbo Data API's	56
Enhancements	57
Data Model Changes	57
Resolved Issues	57
Known Issues	57
Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.05.24 Release Notes	59
About Release Notes	59
Packages	60
System Requirements and Supported Platforms	61
New Features	62
Enhancements	62
Data Model Changes	62
Resolved Issues	62
Known Issues	63
Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.05.28 Release Notes	64
About Release Notes	
Packages	
System Requirements and Supported Platforms	
New Features	

Enhancements	67
Data Model Changes	67
Resolved Issues	67
Known Issues	67
Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.06.18 Release Notes	69
About Release Notes	69
Packages	70
System Requirements and Supported Platforms	71
New Features	72
Enhancements	72
Real-time Synching of Configuration Changes from the Mini Cart	72
Expand and Collapse All Icons on the Product Details Page	72
Data Model Changes	73
Resolved Issues	73
Known Issues	73
Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.07.09 Release Notes	74
About Release Notes	74
Packages	75
System Requirements and Supported Platforms	76
New Features	77
Enhancements	77
Support for Usage Price Type with TurboPricing (DC-6799)	77
Support for Models with Expose Decorators	77
Update to the Pricing API with LineNumber as Query Parameter	78
Data Model Changes	78
Resolved Issues	78
Known Issues	79

About Release Notes

Apttus Release Notes contain the following information about Digital Commerce Summer 2020 Patch 1 Release on Salesforce.

For more information on new features, enhancements, and document improvements refer to

- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.
- · What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 User Guide.
- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 REST API Guide.
- · Packages: Lists packages that are required to upgrade to this release of the product
- System Requirements and Supported Platforms: Lists requirements and recommendations for installing this release
- New Features: Provides high-level descriptions of new features introduced in this release, with links to more detailed information
- Enhancements: Provides high-level descriptions of enhancements to existing features
- Data Model Changes: Lists changes to the data model
- Resolved Issues: Lists customer-reported issues that are resolved in this release or known issues resolved from previous releases
- · Known Issues: Lists known issues that are applicable in this release
- This documentation may contain descriptions of software features that are optional and for which you may not have purchased a license. As a result, your specific software solution and/or implementation may differ from those described in this document. Please contact your CSM or AE for information on your specific features and licensing.

Packages

The following packages and dependent packages are required to upgrade to this release to utilize all the new features of this release. These are the *minimum* required versions; later versions are also supported. Separate prerequisites for each feature can be found in the respective guides. The packages marked as **(New)** are new packages in this release.

Product	Latest Certified Version
	Version Name Version Number
Conga Contract Lifecycle Management (New)	11.1.0547 11.547
Conga Digital Commerce (New)	4.1.85.2 4.85.2
	Summer 2020 Patch 1
Conga Digital Commerce SDK (New)	2002.1.3 (2002)
Conga Quote Management (New)	10.1.0221 10.221
Conga Base Library (New)	1.1.93 1.93
(Pre-requisite for Installing Conga Configuration & Pricing)	
Conga Configuration & Pricing (New)	12.1.1787.6 12.1787.6
Conga Quote Configuration Integration (New)	12.1.0332 12.332
Conga CPQ Setup (New)	12.1.61 12.61
Conga CPQ API (New)	12.1.0104 12.104
Conga Promotions	1.0.0000 1.0
(Required if you are using Promotions)	
Conga Quote -Asset Integration	6.5.0014 6.14
(Required if you are using Assets Based Ordering)	
Conga Order Management	1.0.0000 1.0
(Required only if Partner Commerce package is installed)	
Conga Billing (New)	6.2.238.1 6.238.1

i Before installing or upgrading Apttus managed packages, you must review the dependency matrix for each managed package. You can refer to the package dependency matrix at Packages Dependency Matrix.

System Requirements and Supported Platforms

The following table lists the minimum requirements for installing and using Digital Commerce.

System Requirement	Minimum Supported Version
Operating System	Standard Salesforce.com requirements. See Salesforce PDF.
Browser	Apttus supports the following browsers: • Microsoft Edge • Google Chrome Apttus recommends the latest version of the browser for the best performance. Apttus also recommends its customers to use Microsoft Edge as the browser of choice. Internet Explorer is not supported.

Upgrade Notes

For more information on the prerequisites and post-upgrade tasks, see Upgrading Digital Commerce to in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Implementation and Deployment Guide.

New Features

There are no new features in this release. Keep checking the Apttus Documentation Portal for new updates.

Enhancements

There are no enhancements in this release.

Data Model Changes

This release does not have any data model changes for Digital Commerce.

Resolved Issues

The following table lists the issue resolved in this release.

Case Number	Apttus Internal ID	Description
00099314	DC-4673	Setting the options/bundle as Default under an option group (with Is Hidden flag set to True) did not add the nested bundle or option product to the Cart.

Known Issues

There are no known issues in this release.

Apttus Copyright Disclaimer

Copyright © 2021 Apttus Corporation ("Apttus") and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved.

No part of this document, or any information linked to or referenced herein, may be reproduced, distributed, or transmitted in any form or by any means, including photocopying, recording, or other electronic or mechanical methods, without the prior written consent of Apttus. All information contained herein is subject to change without notice and is not warranted to be error free.

This document may describe certain features and functionality of software that Apttus makes available for use under a license agreement containing restrictions on use and disclosure and are protected by intellectual property laws. Except as expressly permitted in your license agreement or allowed by law, you may not, in any form, or by any means, use, copy, reproduce, translate, broadcast, modify, license, transmit, distribute, exhibit, perform, publish, or display any part of the software. Reverse engineering, disassembly, decompilation of, or the creation of derivative work(s) from, the software is strictly prohibited. Additionally, this document may contain descriptions of software modules that are optional and for which you may not have purchased a license. As a result, your specific software solution and/or implementation may differ from those described in this document.

U.S. GOVERNMENT END USERS: Apttus software, including any operating system(s), integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, delivered to U.S. Government end users are "commercial computer software" pursuant to the applicable Federal Acquisition Regulation and agency-specific supplemental regulations. As such, use, duplication, disclosure, modification, and adaptation of the programs, including any operating system, integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, shall be subject to license terms and license restrictions applicable to the programs. No other rights are granted to the U.S. Government.

Neither the software nor the documentation were developed or intended for use in any inherently dangerous applications, including applications that may create a risk of personal injury. If you use this software or hardware in dangerous applications, then you shall be responsible to take all appropriate fail-safe, backup, redundancy, and other measures to ensure its safe use. Apttus and its affiliates disclaim any liability for any damages caused by use of this software or hardware in dangerous applications.

Apttus and X-Author are registered trademarks of Apttus and/or its affiliates.

The documentation and/or software may provide links to Web sites and access to content, products, and services from third parties. Apttus is not responsible for the availability of, or any content provided by third parties. You bear all risks associated with the use of such content. If you choose to purchase any products or services from a third party, the relationship is directly between you and the third party. Apttus is not responsible for: (a) the

quality of third-party products or services; or (b) fulfilling any of the terms of the agreement with the third party, including delivery of products or services and warranty obligations related to purchased products or services. Apttus is not responsible for any loss or damage of any sort that you may incur from dealing with any third party.

For additional resources and support, please visit https://community.conga.com.

DOC ID: DCOMSFSUM20P1RN20200831

Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 5 Release Notes

About Release Notes

Apttus Release Notes contain the following information about Digital Commerce Summer 2020 Patch 5 Release on Salesforce.

For more information on new features, enhancements, and document improvements refer to

- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.
- · What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 User Guide.
- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 REST API Guide.
- · Packages: Lists packages that are required to upgrade to this release of the product
- System Requirements and Supported Platforms: Lists requirements and recommendations for installing this release
- New Features: Provides high-level descriptions of new features introduced in this release, with links to more detailed information
- Enhancements: Provides high-level descriptions of enhancements to existing features
- · Data Model Changes: Lists changes to the data model
- Resolved Issues: Lists customer-reported issues that are resolved in this release or known issues resolved from previous releases
- · Known Issues: Lists known issues that are applicable in this release
- This documentation may contain descriptions of software features that are optional and for which you may not have purchased a license. As a result, your specific software solution and/or implementation may differ from those described in this document. Please contact your CSM or AE for information on your specific features and licensing.

Packages

The following packages and dependent packages are required to upgrade to this release to utilize all the new features of this release. These are the *minimum* required versions; later versions are also supported. Separate prerequisites for each feature can be found in the respective guides. The packages marked as **(New)** are new packages in this release.

Product	Latest Certified Version Version Name Version Number
	version name į version namber
Conga Contract Lifecycle Management (New)	11.1.0547.4 11.547.4
Conga Digital Commerce (New)	4.1.85.9 4.85.9
	Summer 2020 Patch 5
Conga Digital Commerce SDK (New)	2002.1.18 (2002)
Conga Quote Management	10.1.0221 10.221
Conga Base Library (New)	1.1.93.3 1.93.3
(Pre-requisite for Installing Conga Configuration & Pricing)	
Conga Configuration & Pricing (New)	12.1.1787.25 12.1787.25
Conga Quote Configuration Integration	12.0.0332 12.332
Conga CPQ Setup (New)	12.1.61.3 12.61.3
Conga CPQ API	12.1.0104 12.104
Conga Promotions	1.0.0000 1.0
(Required if you are using Promotions)	
Conga Quote -Asset Integration	6.5.0014 6.14
(Required if you are using Assets Based Ordering)	

Product	Latest Certified Version Version Name Version Number
Conga Order Management	1.0.0000 1.0
(Required only if Partner Commerce package is installed)	
Conga Billing	6.2.238.1 6.238.1

i Before installing or upgrading Apttus managed packages, you must review the dependency matrix for each managed package. You can refer to the package dependency matrix at Packages Dependency Matrix.

System Requirements and Supported Platforms

The following table lists the minimum requirements for installing and using Digital Commerce.

System Requirement	Minimum Supported Version
Operating System	Standard Salesforce.com requirements. See Salesforce PDF.
Browser	Apttus supports the following browsers: • Microsoft Edge • Google Chrome
	Apttus recommends the latest version of the browser for the best performance. Apttus also recommends its customers to use Microsoft Edge as the browser of choice.
	△ Internet Explorer is not supported.

Upgrade Notes

For more information on the prerequisites and post-upgrade tasks, see Upgrading Digital Commerce to in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Implementation and Deployment Guide.

New Features

The following features are new to Digital Commerce in this release.

- TurboPricing Integration with Digital Commerce
 - · Introducing CPQ REST API Version 2

TurboPricing Integration with Digital Commerce

Digital Commerce introduces TurboPricing integration for pricing calculations to offload complex pricing computation workload from the Salesforce platform to the Apttus Flexible Compute Platform. TurboPricing is an optional pricing engine built using microservices to reduce the processing time on the cart.

Get Started

For more details on the TurboPricing setup, refer to Configuring TurboEngines in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.

For more details on the Available Features in this release, refer to Supported Features in Digital Commerce With TurboPricing Integration in *Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 User Guide.*

Introducing CPQ REST API Version 2

With CPQ REST API Version 2, the following REST APIs are updated to support both TurboPricing and CPQ Pricing.

- [POST] /carts/{cartId}/price
- [POST] /carts/{cartId}/promotions
- [DELETE] /carts/{cartId}/promotions/{couponCode}
- CPQ REST API Version 2 supports TurboPricing and CPQ Pricing; whereas CPQ REST API Version 1 only supports CPQ Pricing. Also, the SDK is integrated with Version 1 and not Version 2.

Get Started

For more details on Digital Commerce REST APIs, refer to CPQ REST API Version 2 in *Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 REST API Guide.*

Enhancements

There are no enhancements in this release.

Data Model Changes

This release does not have any data model changes for Digital Commerce.

Resolved Issues

There are no resolved issues in this release.

Known Issues

The following table provides the cumulative list of known issues up to this release.

Apttus Internal ID	Description
DC-5903	TurboPricing integration supports up to 20 line items for the price calculation.

Apttus Copyright Disclaimer

Copyright © 2021 Apttus Corporation ("Apttus") and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved.

No part of this document, or any information linked to or referenced herein, may be reproduced, distributed, or transmitted in any form or by any means, including photocopying, recording, or other electronic or mechanical methods, without the prior written consent of Apttus. All information contained herein is subject to change without notice and is not warranted to be error free.

This document may describe certain features and functionality of software that Apttus makes available for use under a license agreement containing restrictions on use and disclosure and are protected by intellectual property laws. Except as expressly permitted in your license agreement or allowed by law, you may not, in any form, or by any means, use, copy, reproduce, translate, broadcast, modify, license, transmit, distribute, exhibit,

perform, publish, or display any part of the software. Reverse engineering, disassembly, decompilation of, or the creation of derivative work(s) from, the software is strictly prohibited. Additionally, this document may contain descriptions of software modules that are optional and for which you may not have purchased a license. As a result, your specific software solution and/or implementation may differ from those described in this document.

U.S. GOVERNMENT END USERS: Apttus software, including any operating system(s), integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, delivered to U.S. Government end users are "commercial computer software" pursuant to the applicable Federal Acquisition Regulation and agency-specific supplemental regulations. As such, use, duplication, disclosure, modification, and adaptation of the programs, including any operating system, integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, shall be subject to license terms and license restrictions applicable to the programs. No other rights are granted to the U.S. Government.

Neither the software nor the documentation were developed or intended for use in any inherently dangerous applications, including applications that may create a risk of personal injury. If you use this software or hardware in dangerous applications, then you shall be responsible to take all appropriate fail-safe, backup, redundancy, and other measures to ensure its safe use. Apttus and its affiliates disclaim any liability for any damages caused by use of this software or hardware in dangerous applications.

Apttus and X-Author are registered trademarks of Apttus and/or its affiliates.

The documentation and/or software may provide links to Web sites and access to content, products, and services from third parties. Apttus is not responsible for the availability of, or any content provided by third parties. You bear all risks associated with the use of such content. If you choose to purchase any products or services from a third party, the relationship is directly between you and the third party. Apttus is not responsible for: (a) the quality of third-party products or services; or (b) fulfilling any of the terms of the agreement with the third party, including delivery of products or services and warranty obligations related to purchased products or services. Apttus is not responsible for any loss or damage of any sort that you may incur from dealing with any third party.

For additional resources and support, please visit https://community.conga.com.

DOC ID: DCOMSFSUM20P5RN20201021

Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.01.04 Release Notes

About Release Notes

Conga Release Notes contain the following information about Digital Commerce Summer20.01.04 Release on Salesforce.

For more information on new features, enhancements, and document improvements refer to

- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.
- · What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 User Guide.
- What's new in *Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 REST API Guide.*
- · Packages: Lists packages that are required to upgrade to this release of the product
- System Requirements and Supported Platforms: Lists requirements and recommendations for installing this release
- New Features: Provides high-level descriptions of new features introduced in this release, with links to more detailed information
- Enhancements: Provides high-level descriptions of enhancements to existing features
- · Data Model Changes: Lists changes to the data model
- Resolved Issues: Lists customer-reported issues that are resolved in this release or known issues resolved from previous releases
- Known Issues: Lists known issues that are applicable in this release
- This documentation may contain descriptions of software features that are optional and for which you may not have purchased a license. As a result, your specific software solution and/or implementation may differ from those described in this document. Please contact your CSM or AE for information on your specific features and licensing.

Packages

The following packages and dependent packages are required to upgrade to this release to utilize all the new features of this release. These are the *minimum* required versions; later versions are also supported. Separate prerequisites for each feature can be found in the respective guides. The packages marked as **(New)** are new packages in this release.

2	
Product	Latest Certified Version
	Version Name Version Number
Conga Contract Lifecycle Management	11.1.0547.4 11.547.4
Conga Digital Commerce (New)	4.1.85.17 4.85.17
	Summer20.01.04
Digital Commerce SDK (New)	2002.1.40 (2002)
Conga Quote Management (New)	10.1.0221.4 10.221.4
Conga Base Library	1.1.93.3 1.93.3
(Pre-requisite for Installing Conga Configuration & Pricing)	
Conga Configuration & Pricing (New)	12.1.1787.75 12.1787.75
Conga Quote Configuration Integration	12.0.0332 12.332
Conga CPQ Setup	12.1.61.3 12.61.3
Conga CPQ API	12.1.0104 12.104
Conga Promotions	1.0.0000 1.0
(Required if you are using Promotions)	
Conga Quote Asset Integration	6.5.0014 6.14
(Required if you are using Assets Based Ordering)	
Conga Order Management	1.0.0000 1.0

Product	Latest Certified Version Version Name Version Number
Conga Billing Management	6.2.238.1 6.238.1

i Before installing or upgrading Conga managed packages, you must review the dependency matrix for each managed package. You can refer to the package dependency matrix at Packages Dependency Matrix.

System Requirements and Supported Platforms

The following table lists the minimum requirements for installing and using Digital Commerce.

System Requirement	Minimum Supported Version
Operating System	Standard Salesforce.com requirements. See Salesforce PDF.
Browser	Conga supports the following browsers: • Microsoft Edge • Google Chrome Conga recommends the latest version of the browser for the best performance. Conga also recommends its customers to use Microsoft Edge as the browser of choice.
	△ Internet Explorer is not supported.

Upgrade Notes

For more information on the prerequisites and post-upgrade tasks, see Upgrading Digital Commerce in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Implementation and Deployment Guide.

New Features

There are no new features in this release. Keep checking the Conga Documentation Portal for new updates.

Enhancements

Enhancement to the SDK to Allow Making Pricing Changes

The Digital Commerce SDK is enhanced to make pricing changes. *skipPricing* and *skipRules* flags are made available in the environment file.

Flag	Description
skipPricing	By default, this flag is set to True. Changes to an existing cart skip pricing. Setting this flag to False allows pricing when changes are done to an existing cart.
skipRules	By default, this flag is set to False. Changes to the existing cart evaluate the rules. Setting this flag to True skips rules when changes are done to an existing cart.

You may use these flags to make changes to the cart with or without pricing parameters.

- skipPricing = True and skipRules = False
- skipPricing = False and skipRules = True
- skipPricing = False and skipRules = False

Get Started

For more details, refer to the *Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 SDK Guide.*

Export line-item-table-row Component to Extend for Customization

The Digital Commerce SDK is enhanced to allow exporting the line-item-table-row component in the LineItemTableRowModule to extend the component to further modify the UI template.

Get Started

For more details, refer to the *Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 SDK Guide.*

Data Model Changes

This release does not have any data model changes for Digital Commerce.

Resolved Issues

There are no resolved issues in this release.

Known Issues

The following table provides the cumulative list of known issues up to this release.

Conga Internal ID	Description
DC-5903	TurboPricing integration supports up to 20 line items for the price calculation.
DC-6164	Attribute-Based Value Matrix configurations are applied to expired products.

DOC ID: DCSUM200104RN

Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.01.15 Release Notes

About Release Notes

Conga Release Notes contain the following information about Digital Commerce Summer20.01.15 Release on Salesforce.

For more information on new features, enhancements, and document improvements refer to

- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.
- · What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 User Guide.
- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 REST API Guide.
- · Packages: Lists packages that are required to upgrade to this release of the product
- System Requirements and Supported Platforms: Lists requirements and recommendations for installing this release
- New Features: Provides high-level descriptions of new features introduced in this release, with links to more detailed information
- Enhancements: Provides high-level descriptions of enhancements to existing features
- · Data Model Changes: Lists changes to the data model
- Resolved Issues: Lists customer-reported issues that are resolved in this release or known issues resolved from previous releases
- Known Issues: Lists known issues that are applicable in this release
- This documentation may contain descriptions of software features that are optional and for which you may not have purchased a license. As a result, your specific software solution and/or implementation may differ from those described in this document. Please contact your CSM or AE for information on your specific features and licensing.

Packages

The following packages and dependent packages are required to upgrade to this release to utilize all the new features of this release. These are the *minimum* required versions; later versions are also supported. Separate prerequisites for each feature can be found in the respective guides. The packages marked as **(New)** are new packages in this release.

Product	Latest Certified Version
	Version Name Version Number
Conga Contract Lifecycle Management (New)	11.1.0547.8 11.547.8
Conga Digital Commerce (New)	4.1.85.21 4.85.21
	Summer20.01.15
Digital Commerce SDK (New)	2002.1.53 (2002)
Conga Quote Management	10.1.0221.4 10.221.4
Conga Base Library (New)	1.2.123 1.123
(Pre-requisite for Installing Conga Configuration & Pricing)	
Conga Configuration & Pricing (New)	12.1.1787.81 12.1787.81
Conga Quote Configuration Integration (New)	12.1.0332.2 12.332.2
Conga CPQ Setup	12.1.61.3 12.61.3
Conga CPQ API	12.1.0104 12.104
Conga Promotions	1.0.0000 1.0
(Required if you are using Promotions)	
Conga Quote Asset Integration	6.5.0014 6.14
(Required if you are using Assets Based Ordering)	
Conga Order Management	1.0.0000 1.0
Conga Billing Management	6.2.238.1 6.238.1

 Before installing or upgrading Conga managed packages, you must review the dependency matrix for each managed package. You can refer to the package dependency matrix at Packages Dependency Matrix.

System Requirements and Supported **Platforms**

The following table lists the minimum requirements for installing and using Digital Commerce.

System Requirement	Minimum Supported Version
Operating System	Standard Salesforce.com requirements. See Salesforce PDF.
Browser	Conga supports the following browsers: · Microsoft Edge · Google Chrome Conga recommends the latest version of the browser for the best performance. Conga also recommends its customers to use Microsoft Edge as the browser of choice.

Upgrade Notes

For more information on the prerequisites and post-upgrade tasks, see Upgrading Digital Commerce in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Implementation and Deployment Guide.

New Features

There are no new features in this release. Keep checking the Conga Documentation Portal for new updates.

Enhancements

There are no new enhancements in this release.

Data Model Changes

This release does not have any data model changes for Digital Commerce.

Resolved Issues

The following table lists the issues resolved in this release.

Case Number	Conga Internal ID	Description
00110874	DC-6174	The product catalog displayed all the products from the storefront pricelist even though some products were not part of the customer pricelist products. Also, incorrect product price was displayed on the catalog.
00110794	DC-6165	An exception error occurred while placing an order.
00110651	DC-6134	Category hierarchy was not working using the hamburger menu on the left.
00110650	DC-6133	Incorrect pricing was displayed on the cart page.
00109804	DC-6050	CPU timeout error occurred while retrieving large pricelist categories.

The following table lists the known issue resolved from the previous release.

Conga Internal ID	Description
DC-6164	Attribute-Based Value Matrix configurations were applied to expired products.

Known Issues

The following table provides the cumulative list of known issues up to this release.

Conga Internal ID	Description
DC-5903	TurboPricing integration supports up to 20 line items for the price calculation.

DOC ID: DCSUM200115RN

Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.01.29 Release Notes

About Release Notes

Conga Release Notes contain the following information about Digital Commerce Summer20.01.29 Release on Salesforce.

For more information on new features, enhancements, and document improvements refer to

- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.
- · What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 User Guide.
- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 REST API Guide.
- · Packages: Lists packages that are required to upgrade to this release of the product
- System Requirements and Supported Platforms: Lists requirements and recommendations for installing this release
- New Features: Provides high-level descriptions of new features introduced in this release, with links to more detailed information
- Enhancements: Provides high-level descriptions of enhancements to existing features
- · Data Model Changes: Lists changes to the data model
- Resolved Issues: Lists customer-reported issues that are resolved in this release or known issues resolved from previous releases
- Known Issues: Lists known issues that are applicable in this release
- This documentation may contain descriptions of software features that are optional and for which you may not have purchased a license. As a result, your specific software solution and/or implementation may differ from those described in this document. Please contact your CSM or AE for information on your specific features and licensing.

Packages

The following packages and dependent packages are required to upgrade to this release to utilize all the new features of this release. These are the *minimum* required versions; later versions are also supported. Separate prerequisites for each feature can be found in the respective guides. The packages marked as **(New)** are new packages in this release.

Product	Latest Certified Version Version Name Version Number
Conga Contract Lifecycle Management	11.1.0547.8 11.547.8
Conga Digital Commerce (New)	4.1.85.24 4.85.24 Summer20.01.29
Digital Commerce SDK (New)	2002.1.60 (2002)
Conga Quote Management	10.1.0221.4 10.221.4
Conga Base Library	1.2.123 1.123
(Pre-requisite for Installing Conga Configuration & Pricing)	
Conga Configuration & Pricing (New)	12.1.1787.84 12.1787.84
Conga Quote Configuration Integration (New)	12.1.0332.3 12.332.3
Conga CPQ Setup	12.1.61.3 12.61.3
Conga CPQ API	12.1.0104 12.104
Conga Promotions	1.0.0000 1.0
(Required if you are using Promotions)	
Conga Quote Asset Integration	6.5.0014 6.14
(Required if you are using Assets Based Ordering)	
Conga Order Management	1.0.0000 1.0

Product	Latest Certified Version Version Name Version Number
Conga Billing Management	6.2.238.1 6.238.1

(i) Before installing or upgrading Conga managed packages, you must review the dependency matrix for each managed package. You can refer to the package dependency matrix at Packages Dependency Matrix.

System Requirements and Supported Platforms

The following table lists the minimum requirements for installing and using Digital Commerce.

System Requirement	Minimum Supported Version
Operating System	Standard Salesforce.com requirements. See Salesforce PDF.
Browser	Conga supports the following browsers: • Microsoft Edge • Google Chrome Conga recommends the latest version of the browser for the best performance. Conga also recommends its customers to use Microsoft Edge as the browser of choice. Internet Explorer is not supported.

Upgrade Notes

For more information on the prerequisites and post-upgrade tasks, see Upgrading Digital Commerce in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Implementation and Deployment Guide.

New Features

There are no new features in this release. Keep checking the Conga Documentation Portal for new updates.

Enhancements

There are no new enhancements in this release.

Data Model Changes

This release does not have any data model changes for Digital Commerce.

Resolved Issues

The following table lists the issues resolved in this release.

Case Number	Conga Internal ID	Description
00111432	DC-6209	Incorrect price for option products was displayed on the catalog.
00110769	DC-6167	Even though the Exclusion constraint rule was created using Disable selection, the user could still select the product.
00110770	DC-6166	Inactive Constraint Rules detail was displayed when hovering over the Add to Cart or Update Configuration button.

Known Issues

The following table provides the cumulative list of known issues up to this release.

Conga Internal ID	Description
DC-5903	TurboPricing integration supports up to 20 line items for the price calculation.

DOC ID: DCSUM200129RN

Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.02.26 Release Notes

About Release Notes

Conga Release Notes contain the following information about Digital Commerce Summer20.02.26 Release on Salesforce.

For more information on new features, enhancements, and document improvements refer to

- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.
- · What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 User Guide.
- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 REST API Guide.
- · Packages: Lists packages that are required to upgrade to this release of the product
- System Requirements and Supported Platforms: Lists requirements and recommendations for installing this release
- New Features: Provides high-level descriptions of new features introduced in this release, with links to more detailed information
- Enhancements: Provides high-level descriptions of enhancements to existing features
- · Data Model Changes: Lists changes to the data model
- Resolved Issues: Lists customer-reported issues that are resolved in this release or known issues resolved from previous releases
- · Known Issues: Lists known issues that are applicable in this release
- This documentation may contain descriptions of software features that are optional and for which you may not have purchased a license. As a result, your specific software solution and/or implementation may differ from those described in this document. Please contact your CSM or AE for information on your specific features and licensing.

Packages

The following packages and dependent packages are required to upgrade to this release to utilize all the new features of this release. These are the *minimum* required versions; later versions are also supported. Separate prerequisites for each feature can be found in the respective guides. The packages marked as **(New)** are new packages in this release.

Product	Latest Certified Version
	Version Name Version Number
Conga Contract Lifecycle Management	11.1.0547.8 11.547.8
Conga Digital Commerce (New)	4.1.85.28 4.85.28
	Summer20.02.26
Digital Commerce SDK (New)	2002.1.74 (2002)
Conga Quote Management	10.1.0221.4 10.221.4
Conga Base Library	1.2.123 1.123
(Pre-requisite for Installing Conga Configuration & Pricing)	
Conga Configuration & Pricing (New)	12.1.1787.99 12.1787.99
Conga Quote Configuration Integration (New)	12.1.0332.7 12.332.7
Conga CPQ Setup	12.1.61.3 12.61.3
Conga CPQ API	12.1.0104 12.104
Conga Promotions	1.0.0000 1.0
(Required if you are using Promotions)	
Conga Quote Asset Integration	6.5.0014 6.14
(Required if you are using Assets Based Ordering)	
Conga Order Management	1.0.0000 1.0
Conga Billing Management	6.2.238.1 6.238.1

 Before installing or upgrading Conga managed packages, you must review the dependency matrix for each managed package. You can refer to the package dependency matrix at Packages Dependency Matrix.

System Requirements and Supported **Platforms**

The following table lists the minimum requirements for installing and using Digital Commerce.

System Requirement	Minimum Supported Version
Operating System	Standard Salesforce.com requirements. See Salesforce PDF.
Browser	Conga supports the following browsers: • Microsoft Edge • Google Chrome Conga recommends the latest version of the browser for the best performance. Conga also recommends its customers to use Microsoft Edge as the browser of choice.
	△ Internet Explorer is not supported.

Upgrade Notes

For more information on the prerequisites and post-upgrade tasks, see Upgrading Digital Commerce in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Implementation and Deployment Guide.

New Features

There are no new features in this release. Keep checking the Conga Documentation Portal for new updates.

Enhancements

There are no new enhancements in this release.

Data Model Changes

This release does not have any data model changes for Digital Commerce.

Resolved Issues

The following table lists the issues resolved in this release.

Case Number	Conga Internal ID	Description
00112553	DC-6315	The application failed when deleting the line item from a cart that had only one item in it.
00112390	DC-6311	Constraint Rule message appeared even after deleting the product in condition.
00111969	DC-6256	While performing a search, a CPU timeout issue occurred.
00111620	DC-6243	Incorrect currency was displayed in the Digital Commerce UI.

Known Issues

The following table provides the cumulative list of known issues up to this release.

Conga Internal ID	Description
DC-5903	TurboPricing integration supports up to 20 line items for the price calculation.

DOC ID: DCSUM200226RN

Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.03.26 Release Notes

About Release Notes

Conga Release Notes contain the following information about Digital Commerce Summer20.03.26 Release on Salesforce.

For more information on new features, enhancements, and document improvements refer to

- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.
- · What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 User Guide.
- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 REST API Guide.
- · Packages: Lists packages that are required to upgrade to this release of the product
- System Requirements and Supported Platforms: Lists requirements and recommendations for installing this release
- New Features: Provides high-level descriptions of new features introduced in this release, with links to more detailed information
- Enhancements: Provides high-level descriptions of enhancements to existing features
- · Data Model Changes: Lists changes to the data model
- Resolved Issues: Lists customer-reported issues that are resolved in this release or known issues resolved from previous releases
- · Known Issues: Lists known issues that are applicable in this release
- This documentation may contain descriptions of optional software features and for which you may not have purchased a license. As a result, your specific software solution and/or implementation may differ from those described in this document. Please contact your CSM or AE for information on your specific features and licensing.

Packages

The following packages and dependent packages are required to upgrade to this release to utilize all the new features of this release. These are the *minimum* required versions; later versions are also supported. Separate prerequisites for each feature can be found in the respective guides. The packages marked as **(New)** are new in this release.

Product	Latest Certified Version
	Version Name Version Number
Conga Contract Lifecycle Management	11.1.0547.8 11.547.8
Conga Digital Commerce (New)	4.1.85.33 4.85.33
	Summer20.03.26
Digital Commerce SDK (New)	2002.1.87 (2002)
Conga Quote Management (New)	10.1.0221.6 10.221.6
Conga Base Library	1.2.123 1.123
(Pre-requisite for Installing Conga Configuration & Pricing)	
Conga Configuration & Pricing (New)	12.1.1787.107 12.1787.107
Conga Quote Configuration Integration (New)	12.1.0332.9 12.332.9
Conga CPQ Setup	12.1.61.3 12.61.3
Conga CPQ API	12.1.0104 12.104
Conga Promotions	1.0.0000 1.0
(Required if you are using Promotions)	
Conga Quote Asset Integration	6.5.0014 6.14
(Required if you are using Assets Based Ordering)	
Conga Order Management	1.0.0000 1.0
Conga Billing Management	6.2.238.1 6.238.1

 Before installing or upgrading Conga managed packages, you must review the dependency matrix for each managed package. You can refer to the package dependency matrix at Packages Dependency Matrix.

System Requirements and Supported **Platforms**

The following table lists the minimum requirements for installing and using Digital Commerce.

System Requirement	Minimum Supported Version
Operating System	Standard Salesforce.com requirements. See Salesforce PDF.
Browser	Conga supports the following browsers: • Microsoft Edge • Google Chrome Conga recommends the latest version of the browser for the best performance. Conga also recommends its customers to use Microsoft Edge as the browser of choice.
	△ Internet Explorer is not supported.

Upgrade Notes

For more information on the prerequisites and post-upgrade tasks, see Upgrading Digital Commerce in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Implementation and Deployment Guide.

New Features

The following features are new to Digital Commerce in this release.

New Convert Currency Pipe

A new pipe named *ConvertCurrencyPipe* is introduced to perform client-side currency conversion for aggregate fields or any fields where Salesforce limits the results to default currency on the org. The pipe ConvertCurrencyPipe is part of the Digital Commerce SDK and exposed to templates and its usage is aligned to the Angular standards of calling currency pipe.

Example 1:

- {{ 5.55 | convertCurrency | async }}
- <!-- Renders \$5.55 --> When no parameters are passed to the pipe, it converts and displays the currency based on the one defined on the Price List.

Example 2: (Specify currency ISO code)

- {{65.23 | convertCurrency: 'EUR' | async}}
- <!-- Renders €65.23 --> You can pass any currency code to the pipe, to convert the values to. Based on the conversion rates defined in the org, the pipe does the conversion and displays currency values.

The following optional parameters can also be passed into this pipe to control the decimal representation, currency symbol, and more.

Parameters	Description
display	Displays the currency symbol. It can take values like code, symbol, symbol-narrow, a customized string, or a boolean. The default is symbol-narrow.
digitsInfo	A string representing the decimal part of the currency value.

Get Started

For details on the ConvertCurrencyPipe, refer to the Modules > PricingModule > Pipes > ConvertCurrencyPipe section of the Conga Digital Commerce SDK.

Addition of a New Input Property to Chart Components

A new (optional) input property has been added to our chart component to allow you to define the currency values you wish to see on the dashboard components.

Example: <apt-chart [currencyConversionCode]="EUR""> </apt-chart>

If no input is provided, the currency conversion is driven by the default currency specified in the configuration files.

Get Started

For details on the new input property, refer to the *Components > Chart Component* section of the *Conga Digital Commerce SDK*.

Introducing CPQ REST API Version 3

CPQ REST API Version 3 is a performance-based version with modifications to the response structure.



CPQ REST API Version 3 only supports CPQ Pricing. Also, the SDK is integrated with Version 3.

Get Started

For more details on Digital Commerce REST APIs, refer to CPQ REST API Version 3 in *Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 REST API Guide.*

Enhancements

There are no new enhancements in this release.

Data Model Changes

This release does not have any data model changes for Digital Commerce.

Resolved Issues

The following table lists the issues resolved in this release.

Case Number	Conga Internal ID	Description
00113197	DC-6437	The related categories link was not working after selecting the Sub-Category.

Case Number	Conga Internal ID	Description
00112740	DC-6365	Under the billing address section, clicking the Bill To lookup displayed the same account twice on the checkout page.
00112554	DC-6314	Default options are displayed even though no defaults are defined.
00112093	DC-6273	Incorrect amounts were displayed on the Dashboard in a multi-currency org. This issue is now resolved.
		Resolution: Two new features are added to the Digital Commerce SDK to support multi-currency setup. For details, see New Features.
00110938	DC-6172	While navigating a category, after reaching the leaf node, clicking the Back link in the left category navigation panel turns blank.

Known Issues

The following table provides the cumulative list of known issues up to this release.

Conga Internal ID	Description
DC-5903	TurboPricing integration supports up to 20 line items for the price calculation.

DOC ID: DCSUM200326RN

Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.04.23 Release Notes

About Release Notes

Conga Release Notes contain the following information about Digital Commerce Summer20.04.23 Release on Salesforce.

For more information on new features, enhancements, and document improvements refer to

- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.
- · What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 User Guide.
- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 REST API Guide.
- · Packages: Lists packages that are required to upgrade to this release of the product
- System Requirements and Supported Platforms: Lists requirements and recommendations for installing this release
- New Features: Provides high-level descriptions of new features introduced in this release, with links to more detailed information
- Enhancements: Provides high-level descriptions of enhancements to existing features
- · Data Model Changes: Lists changes to the data model
- Resolved Issues: Lists customer-reported issues that are resolved in this release or known issues resolved from previous releases
- · Known Issues: Lists known issues that are applicable in this release
- This documentation may contain descriptions of optional software features and for which you may not have purchased a license. As a result, your specific software solution and/or implementation may differ from those described in this document. Please contact your CSM or AE for information on your specific features and licensing.

Packages

The following packages and dependent packages are required to upgrade to this release to utilize all the new features of this release. These are the *minimum* required versions; later versions are also supported. Separate prerequisites for each feature can be found in the respective guides. The packages marked as **(New)** are new in this release.

Product	Latest Certified Version
	Version Name Version Number
Conga Contract Lifecycle Management	11.1.0547.8 11.547.8
Conga Digital Commerce (New)	4.1.85.42 4.85.42
	Summer20.04.23
Digital Commerce SDK (New)	2002.1.109 (2002)
TurboPricing (New)	2021.4.1
(For details, see Enabling TurboPricing in an Org)	
Conga Quote Management	10.1.0221.6 10.221.6
Conga Base Library	1.2.123 1.123
(Pre-requisite for Installing Conga Configuration & Pricing)	
Conga Configuration & Pricing (New)	12.1.1787.114 12.1787.114
Conga Quote Configuration Integration	12.1.0332.9 12.332.9
Conga CPQ Setup	12.1.61.3 12.61.3
Conga CPQ API	12.1.0104 12.104
Conga Promotions	1.0.0000 1.0
(Required if you are using Promotions)	
Conga Quote Asset Integration	6.5.0014 6.14
(Required if you are using Assets Based Ordering)	

Product	Latest Certified Version Version Name Version Number
Conga Order Management	1.0.0000 1.0
Conga Billing Management	6.2.238.1 6.238.1

 Before installing or upgrading Conga managed packages, you must review the dependency matrix for each managed package. You can refer to the package dependency matrix at Packages Dependency Matrix.

System Requirements and Supported **Platforms**

The following table lists the minimum requirements for installing and using Digital Commerce.

System Requirement	Minimum Supported Version
Operating System	Standard Salesforce.com requirements. See Salesforce PDF.
Browser	Conga supports the following browsers: • Microsoft Edge • Google Chrome Conga recommends the latest version of the browser for the best performance. Conga also recommends its customers to use Microsoft Edge as the browser of choice. Internet Explorer is not supported.

Upgrade Notes

For more information on the prerequisites and post-upgrade tasks, see Upgrading Digital Commerce in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Implementation and Deployment Guide.

New Features

The following features are new to Digital Commerce in this release.

SDK Integration with Digital Commerce for Turbo Data API's

Digital Commerce SDK is integrated for Turbo Data API's that are part of the TurboPricing component with this release. TurboPricing is an optional pricing engine built using microservices to reduce the processing time on the cart. This release enhances the performance with reduced time in fetching the master data such as product details, categories through Turbo Data APIs only. To gain performance benefits, you must configure TurboEngines with Turbo tenant onboarding.



To consume the capabilities of this release, you must have TurboPricing Version 2021.4.1.

Get Started

For details on the TurboPricing setup, refer to Configuring TurboEngines in *Digital Commerce Summer '20 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.*

For details on the updated SDK, refer to SDK Reference in *Digital Commerce Summer '20 Patch 1 SDK Guide.*

Enhancements

There are no new enhancements in this release.

Data Model Changes

This release does not have any data model changes for Digital Commerce.

Resolved Issues

There are no resolved issues in this release.

Known Issues

The following table provides the cumulative list of known issues up to this release.

Conga Internal ID	Description
LS-6641	Selecting the sub-category on the Catalog page does not display the products within it.
	2. Also, the Product Option Group name is not displayed on the product details page. This is caused due to the Option Group ID field from the managed package with the API name as Name. Workaround: You must select the Option Group field with the API name Apttus_Config2_OptionGroupId_c for the Product Option Group Name to appear.
LS-6579	With the TurboPricing master data integration, the pricelist is not associated with categories.
DC-5903	TurboPricing integration supports up to 20 line items for the price calculation.

DOC ID: DCSUM200426RN

Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.05.17 Release Notes

About Release Notes

Conga Release Notes contain the following information about Digital Commerce Summer 20.05.17 Release on Salesforce.

For more information on new features, enhancements, and document improvements refer to

- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.
- · What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 User Guide.
- What's new in *Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 REST API Guide.*
- · Packages: Lists packages that are required to upgrade to this release of the product
- System Requirements and Supported Platforms: Lists requirements and recommendations for installing this release
- New Features: Provides high-level descriptions of new features introduced in this release, with links to more detailed information
- Enhancements: Provides high-level descriptions of enhancements to existing features
- · Data Model Changes: Lists changes to the data model
- Resolved Issues: Lists customer-reported issues that are resolved in this release or known issues resolved from previous releases
- · Known Issues: Lists known issues that are applicable in this release
- This documentation may contain descriptions of optional software features and for which you may not have purchased a license. As a result, your specific software solution and/or implementation may differ from those described in this document. Please contact your CSM or AE for information on your specific features and licensing.

Packages

The following packages and dependent packages are required to upgrade to this release to utilize all the new features of this release. These are the *minimum* required versions; later versions are also supported. Separate prerequisites for each feature can be found in the respective guides. The packages marked as **(New)** are new in this release.

Product	Latest Certified Version
	Version Name Version Number
Conga Contract Lifecycle Management	11.1.0547.8 11.547.8
Conga Digital Commerce (New)	4.1.85.53 4.85.53 Summer20.05.17
Digital Commerce SDK (New)	2002.1.130 (2002)
TurboPricing (New)	2021.5.5
(For details, see Enabling TurboPricing in an Org)	
Conga Quote Management	10.1.0221.6 10.221.6
Conga Base Library	1.2.123 1.123
(Pre-requisite for Installing Conga Configuration & Pricing)	
Conga Configuration & Pricing (New)	12.1.1787.117 12.1787.117
Conga Quote Configuration Integration	12.1.0332.9 12.332.9
Conga CPQ Setup	12.1.61.3 12.61.3
Conga CPQ API	12.1.0104 12.104
Conga Promotions	1.0.0000 1.0
(Required if you are using Promotions)	

Product	Latest Certified Version Version Name Version Number
Conga Quote Asset Integration (Required if you are using Assets Based Ordering)	6.5.0014 6.14
Conga Order Management	1.0.0000 1.0
Conga Billing Management	6.2.238.1 6.238.1

 Before installing or upgrading Conga managed packages, you must review the dependency matrix for each managed package. You can refer to the package dependency matrix at Packages Dependency Matrix.

System Requirements and Supported **Platforms**

The following table lists the minimum requirements for installing and using Digital Commerce.

System Requirement	Minimum Supported Version
Operating System	Standard Salesforce.com requirements. See Salesforce PDF.
Browser	Conga supports the following browsers: • Microsoft Edge • Google Chrome Conga recommends the latest version of the browser for the best performance. Conga also recommends its customers to use Microsoft Edge as the browser of choice. Internet Explorer is not supported.

Upgrade Notes

For more information on the prerequisites and post-upgrade tasks, see Upgrading Digital Commerce in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Implementation and Deployment Guide.

New Features

The following features are new to Digital Commerce in this release.

SDK Integration with TurboPricing

Digital Commerce introduces TurboPricing integration for pricing calculations to offload complex pricing computation workload from the Salesforce platform to the Conga Flexible Compute Platform. TurboPricing is an optional pricing engine built using microservices to reduce the processing time on the cart.

Get Started

For details on the TurboPricing setup, refer to Configuring TurboEngines in *Digital Commerce Summer '20 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.*

For details on the supported features in this release, refer to Supported Features in Digital Commerce With TurboPricing Integration in *Digital Commerce Summer '20 Patch 1 User Guide.*

Product Search and Catalog View Enhancement to Turbo Data API's

The Turbo Data APIs are enhanced to build and consume (front-end or APIs) search and catalog views in your applications, requiring searching, sorting, filtering, paginating, grouping, and aggregation capabilities in Digital Commerce APIs.



To consume the capabilities of this release, you must have TurboPricing Version 2021.5.5.

Get Started

For details on the TurboPricing setup, refer to Configuring TurboEngines in *Digital Commerce Summer '20 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.*

For details on the updated SDK, refer to SDK Reference in *Digital Commerce Summer '20 Patch 1 SDK Guide.*

Enhancements

There are no new enhancements in this release.

Data Model Changes

This release does not have any data model changes for Digital Commerce.

Resolved Issues

The following table lists the issue resolved in this release.

Case Number	Apttus Internal ID	Description
000114715	DC-6581	Inconsistent behavior of the application when quantity is null or zero.

The following table lists the known issues resolved from the previous release.

Conga Internal ID	Description
LS-6641	Selecting the sub-category on the Catalog page does not display the products within it.
	2. Also, the Product Option Group name is not displayed on the product details page. This is caused due to the Option Group ID field from the managed package with the API name as <i>Name</i> .
LS-6579	With the TurboPricing master data integration, the pricelist is not associated with categories.

Known Issues

The following table provides the cumulative list of known issues up to this release.

Conga Internal ID	Description
CPQ-50157	Performing change configuration on any asset line item using changeAsset SOAP API adds the asset line item to the cart with blank quantity.
DC-5903	TurboPricing integration supports up to 20 line items for the price calculation.

DOC ID: DCSUM200517RN

Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.05.24 Release Notes

About Release Notes

Conga Release Notes contain the following information about Digital Commerce Summer20.05.24 Release on Salesforce.

For more information on new features, enhancements, and document improvements refer to

- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.
- · What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 User Guide.
- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 REST API Guide.
- · Packages: Lists packages that are required to upgrade to this release of the product
- System Requirements and Supported Platforms: Lists requirements and recommendations for installing this release
- New Features: Provides high-level descriptions of new features introduced in this release, with links to more detailed information
- Enhancements: Provides high-level descriptions of enhancements to existing features
- · Data Model Changes: Lists changes to the data model
- Resolved Issues: Lists customer-reported issues that are resolved in this release or known issues resolved from previous releases
- Known Issues: Lists known issues that are applicable in this release
- This documentation may contain descriptions of optional software features and for which you may not have purchased a license. As a result, your specific software solution and/or implementation may differ from those described in this document. Please contact your CSM or AE for information on your specific features and licensing.

Packages

The following packages and dependent packages are required to upgrade to this release to utilize all the new features of this release. These are the *minimum* required versions; later versions are also supported. Separate prerequisites for each feature can be found in the respective guides. The packages marked as **(New)** are new in this release.

Product	Latest Certified Version
	Version Name Version Number
Conga Contract Lifecycle Management	11.1.0547.8 11.547.8
Conga Digital Commerce (New)	4.1.85.56 4.85.56 Summer20.05.24
	A This release note reflects the change in version number. Only internal defects were resolved in this release.
Digital Commerce SDK	2002.1.130 (2002)
TurboPricing (For details, see Enabling TurboPricing in an Org)	2021.5.5
Conga Quote Management	10.1.0221.6 10.221.6
Conga Base Library (Pre-requisite for Installing Conga Configuration & Pricing)	1.2.123 1.123
Conga Configuration & Pricing	12.1.1787.117 12.1787.117
Conga Quote Configuration Integration	12.1.0332.9 12.332.9
Conga CPQ Setup	12.1.61.3 12.61.3
Conga CPQ API	12.1.0104 12.104

Product	Latest Certified Version Version Name Version Number
Conga Promotions (Required if you are using Promotions)	1.0.0000 1.0
Conga Quote Asset Integration (Required if you are using Assets Based Ordering)	6.5.0014 6.14
Conga Order Management	1.0.0000 1.0
Conga Billing Management	6.2.238.1 6.238.1

⁽¹⁾ Before installing or upgrading Conga managed packages, you must review the dependency matrix for each managed package. You can refer to the package dependency matrix at Packages Dependency Matrix.

System Requirements and Supported Platforms

The following table lists the minimum requirements for installing and using Digital Commerce.

System Requirement	Minimum Supported Version
Operating System	Standard Salesforce.com requirements. See Salesforce PDF.

System Requirement	Minimum Supported Version
Browser	Conga supports the following browsers: · Microsoft Edge · Google Chrome Conga recommends the latest version of the browser for the best performance. Conga also recommends its customers to use Microsoft Edge as the browser of choice.
	△ Internet Explorer is not supported.

Upgrade Notes

For more information on the prerequisites and post-upgrade tasks, see Upgrading Digital Commerce in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Implementation and Deployment Guide.

New Features

There are no new features in this release. Keep checking the documentation portal for updates.

Enhancements

There are no new enhancements in this release.

Data Model Changes

This release does not have any data model changes for Digital Commerce.

Resolved Issues

There are no issues resolved in this release.

Known Issues

The following table provides the cumulative list of known issues up to this release.

Conga Internal ID	Description
CPQ-50157	Performing change configuration on any asset line item using changeAsset SOAP API adds the asset line item to the cart with blank quantity.
DC-5903	TurboPricing integration supports up to 20 line items for the price calculation.

DOC ID: DCSUM200524RN

Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.05.28 Release Notes

About Release Notes

Conga Release Notes contain the following information about Digital Commerce Summer20.05.28 Release on Salesforce.

For more information on new features, enhancements, and document improvements refer to

- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.
- · What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 User Guide.
- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 REST API Guide.
- · Packages: Lists packages that are required to upgrade to this release of the product
- System Requirements and Supported Platforms: Lists requirements and recommendations for installing this release
- New Features: Provides high-level descriptions of new features introduced in this release, with links to more detailed information
- Enhancements: Provides high-level descriptions of enhancements to existing features
- · Data Model Changes: Lists changes to the data model
- Resolved Issues: Lists customer-reported issues that are resolved in this release or known issues resolved from previous releases
- · Known Issues: Lists known issues that are applicable in this release
- This documentation may contain descriptions of optional software features and for which you may not have purchased a license. As a result, your specific software solution and/or implementation may differ from those described in this document. Please contact your CSM or AE for information on your specific features and licensing.

Packages

The following packages and dependent packages are required to upgrade to this release to utilize all the new features of this release. These are the *minimum* required versions; later versions are also supported. Separate prerequisites for each feature can be found in the respective guides. The packages marked as **(New)** are new in this release.

Product	Latest Certified Version Version Name Version Number
Conga Contract Lifecycle Management	11.1.0547.8 11.547.8
Conga Digital Commerce (New)	4.1.85.59 4.85.59 Summer20.05.28 This release note reflects the change in version number. Only internal defects were resolved in this release.
Digital Commerce SDK (New)	2002.1.140 (2002)
TurboPricing (For details, see Enabling TurboPricing in an Org)	2021.5.5
Conga Quote Management	10.1.0221.6 10.221.6
Conga Base Library (Pre-requisite for Installing Conga Configuration & Pricing)	1.2.123 1.123
Conga Configuration & Pricing (New)	12.1.1787.119 12.1787.119
Conga Quote Configuration Integration (New)	12.1.0332.10 12.332.10
Conga CPQ Setup (New)	12.1.61.5 12.61.5
Conga CPQ API	12.1.0104 12.104

Product	Latest Certified Version Version Name Version Number
Conga Promotions (Required if you are using Promotions)	1.0.0000 1.0
Conga Quote Asset Integration (Required if you are using Assets Based Ordering)	6.5.0014 6.14
Conga Order Management	1.0.0000 1.0
Conga Billing Management	6.2.238.1 6.238.1

⁽¹⁾ Before installing or upgrading Conga managed packages, you must review the dependency matrix for each managed package. You can refer to the package dependency matrix at Packages Dependency Matrix.

System Requirements and Supported Platforms

The following table lists the minimum requirements for installing and using Digital Commerce.

System Requirement	Minimum Supported Version
Operating System	Standard Salesforce.com requirements. See Salesforce PDF.

System Requirement	Minimum Supported Version
Browser	Conga supports the following browsers: · Microsoft Edge · Google Chrome Conga recommends the latest version of the browser for the best performance. Conga also recommends its customers to use Microsoft Edge as the browser of choice.
	△ Internet Explorer is not supported.

Upgrade Notes

For more information on the prerequisites and post-upgrade tasks, see Upgrading Digital Commerce in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Implementation and Deployment Guide.

New Features

There are no new features in this release. Keep checking the documentation portal for updates.

Enhancements

There are no new enhancements in this release.

Data Model Changes

This release does not have any data model changes for Digital Commerce.

Resolved Issues

There are no issues resolved in this release.

Known Issues

The following table provides the cumulative list of known issues up to this release.

Conga Internal ID	Description
CPQ-50157	Performing change configuration on any asset line item using changeAsset SOAP API adds the asset line item to the cart with blank quantity.
DC-5903	TurboPricing integration supports up to 20 line items for the price calculation.

DOC ID: DCSUM200528RN

Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.06.18 Release Notes

About Release Notes

Conga Release Notes contain the following information about Digital Commerce Summer20.06.18 Release on Salesforce.

For more information on new features, enhancements, and document improvements refer to

- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.
- · What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 User Guide.
- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 REST API Guide.
- · Packages: Lists packages that are required to upgrade to this release of the product
- System Requirements and Supported Platforms: Lists requirements and recommendations for installing this release
- New Features: Provides high-level descriptions of new features introduced in this release, with links to more detailed information
- Enhancements: Provides high-level descriptions of enhancements to existing features
- · Data Model Changes: Lists changes to the data model
- Resolved Issues: Lists customer-reported issues that are resolved in this release or known issues resolved from previous releases
- Known Issues: Lists known issues that are applicable in this release
- This documentation may contain descriptions of optional software features and for which you may not have purchased a license. As a result, your specific software solution and/or implementation may differ from those described in this document. Please contact your CSM or AE for information on your specific features and licensing.

Packages

The following packages and dependent packages are required to upgrade to this release to utilize this release's new features. These are the *minimum* required versions; later versions are also supported. Separate prerequisites for each feature can be found in the respective guides. The packages marked as **(New)** are new in this release.

Product	Latest Certified Version	
	Version Name Version Number	
Conga Contract Lifecycle Management	11.1.0547.8 11.547.8	
Conga Digital Commerce (New)	4.1.85.63 4.85.63	
	Summer20.06.18	
Digital Commerce SDK (New)	2002.1.148 (2002)	
TurboPricing	2021.5.4.1	
(For details, see Enabling TurboPricing in an Org)		
Conga Quote Management	10.1.0221.6 10.221.6	
Conga Base Library	1.2.123 1.123	
(Pre-requisite for Installing Conga Configuration & Pricing)		
Conga Configuration & Pricing	12.1.1787.119 12.1787.119	
Conga Quote Configuration Integration	12.1.0332.10 12.332.10	
Conga CPQ Setup	12.1.61.5 12.61.5	
Conga CPQ API	12.1.0104 12.104	
Conga Promotions	1.0.0000 1.0	
(Required if you are using Promotions)		

Product	Latest Certified Version Version Name Version Number
Conga Quote Asset Integration (Required if you are using Assets Based Ordering)	6.5.0014 6.14
Conga Order Management	1.0.0000 1.0
Conga Billing Management (New)	6.2.238.7 6.238.7

 Before installing or upgrading Conga managed packages, you must review the dependency matrix for each managed package. You can refer to the package dependency matrix at Packages Dependency Matrix.

System Requirements and Supported **Platforms**

The following table lists the minimum requirements for installing and using Digital Commerce.

System Requirement	Minimum Supported Version
Operating System	Standard Salesforce.com requirements. See Salesforce PDF.
Browser	Conga supports the following browsers: • Microsoft Edge • Google Chrome Conga recommends the latest version of the browser for the best performance. Conga also recommends its customers use Microsoft Edge as the browser of choice. Internet Explorer is not supported.

Upgrade Notes

For more information on the prerequisites and post-upgrade tasks, see Upgrading Digital Commerce in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Implementation and Deployment Guide.

New Features

There are no new features in this release. Keep checking the documentation portal for updates.



Important

To consume the capabilities of this release, you must have TurboPricing Version 2021.5.4.1.

Enhancements

The following section describes existing features that are changed (or are no longer supported) in this release.

Real-time Synching of Configuration Changes from the Mini Cart

Changing the Quantity or deleting a line item from the mini cart reflects the changes in real-time on the Product Details page and the Cart page.

Expand and Collapse All Icons on the Product Details Page

The Product Details page is uplifted for consistent behavior of the Expand or Collapse All feature globally as well as for OptionGroup and AttributeGroup sections.

Get Started

For details on the product details page, refer to Viewing the Product Details in *Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer '20 Patch 1 User Guide.*

Data Model Changes

This release does not have any data model changes for Digital Commerce.

Resolved Issues

The following table lists resolved issues from the previous release.

Conga Internal ID	Description
CPQ-50157	Performing change configuration on any asset line item using changeAsset SOAP API added the asset line item to the cart with blank quantity.
DC-5903	TurboPricing integration supported up to 20 line items for the price calculation.
	With this release, TurboPricing integration now supports 200 to 250 line items for the price calculation.

Known Issues

The following table provides the cumulative list of known issues up to this release.

Conga Internal ID	Description
DC-6706	Changing the End Date of a bundle product does not update the selling term of the Option product using TurboPricing. This results in the option price not getting added to the net price and the cart total price.
DC-6775	Multiple manual promotions are not applied to the cart.

DOC ID: DCSUM200618RN

Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer20.07.09 Release Notes

About Release Notes

Conga Release Notes contain the following information about Digital Commerce Summer20.07.09 Release on Salesforce.

For more information on new features, enhancements, and document improvements refer to

- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.
- · What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 User Guide.
- What's new in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer 2020 Patch 1 REST API Guide.
- · Packages: Lists packages that are required to upgrade to this release of the product
- System Requirements and Supported Platforms: Lists requirements and recommendations for installing this release
- New Features: Provides high-level descriptions of new features introduced in this release, with links to more detailed information
- Enhancements: Provides high-level descriptions of enhancements to existing features
- · Data Model Changes: Lists changes to the data model
- Resolved Issues: Lists customer-reported issues that are resolved in this release or known issues resolved from previous releases
- · Known Issues: Lists known issues that are applicable in this release
- This documentation may contain descriptions of optional software features and for which you may not have purchased a license. As a result, your specific software solution and/or implementation may differ from those described in this document. Please contact your CSM or AE for information on your specific features and licensing.

Packages

The following packages and dependent packages are required to upgrade to this release to utilize all the new features of this release. These are the *minimum* required versions; later versions are also supported. Separate prerequisites for each feature can be found in the respective guides. The packages marked as **(New)** are new in this release.

Product	Latest Certified Version
	Version Name Version Number
Conga Contract Lifecycle Management	11.1.0547.8 11.547.8
Conga Digital Commerce (New)	4.1.85.69 4.85.69
	Summer20.07.09
Digital Commerce SDK (New)	2002.1.170 (2002)
TurboPricing (New)	2021.7.0
(For details, see Enabling TurboPricing in an Org)	
Conga Quote Management	10.1.0221.6 10.221.6
Conga Base Library (New)	1.2.123.6 1.123.6
(Pre-requisite for Installing Conga Configuration & Pricing)	
Conga Configuration & Pricing (New)	12.1.1787.121 12.1787.121
Conga Quote Configuration Integration	12.1.0332.10 12.332.10
Conga CPQ Setup	12.1.61.5 12.61.5
Conga CPQ API	12.1.0104 12.104
Conga Promotions	1.0.0000 1.0
(Required if you are using Promotions)	
Conga Quote Asset Integration	6.5.0014 6.14
(Required if you are using Assets Based Ordering)	

Product	Latest Certified Version Version Name Version Number
Conga Order Management	1.0.0000 1.0
Conga Billing Management	6.2.238.7 6.238.7

 Before installing or upgrading Conga managed packages, you must review the dependency matrix for each managed package. You can refer to the package dependency matrix at Packages Dependency Matrix.

System Requirements and Supported **Platforms**

The following table lists the minimum requirements for installing and using Digital Commerce.

System Requirement	Minimum Supported Version
Operating System	Standard Salesforce.com requirements. See Salesforce PDF.
Browser	Conga supports the following browsers: • Microsoft Edge • Google Chrome Conga recommends the latest version of the browser for the best performance. Conga also recommends its customers to use Microsoft Edge as the browser of choice. Internet Explorer is not supported.

Upgrade Notes

For more information on the prerequisites and post-upgrade tasks, see Upgrading Digital Commerce in Digital Commerce on Salesforce Implementation and Deployment Guide.

New Features

There are no new features in this release. Keep checking the documentation portal for updates.

Enhancements

The following section describes existing features that are changed (or are no longer supported) in this release.

Support for Usage Price Type with TurboPricing (DC-6799)

Use of Price Type = Usage is now supported with TurboPricing.

Get Started

For a complete list of available features and capabilities, refer to Supported Features in Digital Commerce With TurboPricing Integration in *Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer '20 Patch 1 User Guide.*

Support for Models with Expose Decorators

The Digital Commerce SDK has been updated with the following model changes to be used with expose decorators.

- CartLineitem
- AdjustmentLineitem
- · Incentive
- · SummaryGroup
- TaxBreakup
- TaxCode
- · Cart
- AppliedRuleActionInfo
- · AppliedRuleInfo
- · Account
- AssetLineitem
- OrderLineitem
- Order

- · QuoteLineitem
- · Quote

Get Started

For more information on the supported models, refer to Adding Custom Fields on Object Models in *Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer '20 Patch 1 Implementation and Deployment Guide.*

Update to the Pricing API with LineNumber as Query Parameter

The Pricing API is updated to include lineNumber as a query parameter. This query parameter is used to pass the line number(s) to return only associated lineitems after pricing. Do not pass the lineNumber in the following cases:

- · All the line items need to be retrieved
- · One line item having dependent pricing change on unrelated line items in the cart

For use cases like Related Pricing, all the related line items or the entire cart must be passed for the correct pricing results. If all related lines in the cart are not passed pricing may not be accurate.

Get Started

For details on the pricing API, refer to CPQ REST API Version 3 in *Digital Commerce on Salesforce Summer '20 Patch 1 REST API Guide.*

Data Model Changes

This release does not have any data model changes for Digital Commerce.

Resolved Issues

The following table lists resolved issues from the previous release.

Conga Internal ID	Description
DC-6775	Multiple manual promotions were not applied to the cart.

Conga Internal ID	Description
DC-6706	Changing the End Date of a bundle product did not update the selling term of the Option product using TurboPricing. The option price was added but without multiplying with the selling term resulting in incorrect net price and cart total price.
	Solution: Ensure that the Auto Cascade Selling Term checkbox is selected on the Price List Item for the option. Selecting this checkbox indicates that the selling term is auto cascaded from the bundle product to the options.

Known Issues

There are no known issues in this release.

DOC ID: DCSUM200709RN